B wnN =

% ROCKHILL

SOUTH CAROLINA

AGENDA

Rock Hill Zoning Board of Appeals
May 17, 2022

Call to Order
Approval of Minutes from the April 26, 2022, meeting.
Approval of Orders from the April 26, 2022, meeting

Appeal Z-2022-21: Request by Kevin Mattingly for a variance from the maximum height of
a fence in the front yard for an attached arbor located at 137 Reid St, which is zoned
Single-Family Residential-5 (SF-5). Tax map number 627-16-03-008.

Appeal Z-2022-22: Request by J M Cope, for a special exception to establish a self-storage
use and a variance from the required minimum lot size at 2764 Faith Blvd, which is zoned
General Commercial (GC). Tax map number 662-07-01-374.

Appeal Z-2022-23: Request by Greg Fatool for a variance from the maximum amount of
window signage at 1111 N Anderson Rd, which is zoned General Commercial (GC). Tax
map number 634-07-01-013.

Appeal Z-2022-24: Request by Sue Fullerton with Truck of Love for a variance from the
location standards for a buffer yard fence at 1568 W Main St, which is zoned Neighborhood
Office (NO). Tax map number 595-02-01-001.

Other Business.
Adjourn.

Planning & Development Department, P.O. Box 11706, 155 Johnston St., Rock Hill, SC 29731 Ph. (803) 329-5590 Fax (803) 329-7228



Zoning Board of Appeals Agenda ltems

City of Rock Hill, SC
G RockHiLL May 17, 2022 G RockHiLL
Zoning Board of Appeals

Old Yoy
o \\\
\\ = \\ g L’} (!‘ W)v‘r%/ / \\ ‘/\\\\
| 4 s £ N\ / Celanese
L~ v \/? q l
w o

== /, Q'
= : - Y

Legend
@ City Limits

Map Not Drawn,To Scale
/4

DR 5/11/15




ROCKHILL Zoning Board of Appeals

SOUTH CAROLINA April 26, 2022

A public hearing of the Zoning Board of Appeals was held Tuesday, April 26, 2022, at 6 p.m. in
Council Chambers at City Hall, 155 Johnston Street, Rock Hill SC.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Charlotte Brown, Rodney Cullum, James Hawthorne, Keith Sutton,
MEMBERS ABSENT: Matt Crawford, Stacey Reeves, Chad Williams
STAFF PRESENT: Melody Kearse, Eric Hawkins, Shana Marshburn, Bryman Suttle

Legal notices of the public hearing were published in The Herald on Friday, April 1, 2022. Notice
was posted on all property considered. Adjacent property owners and tenants were notified in
writing.

In the absence of Chair Matt Crawford, Vice-Chair Keith Sutton presided over the meeting.
1. Call to Order

Mr. Sutton called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

2, Approval of Minutes of the March 15, 2022, meeting.

Mr. Cullum made a motion to approve the minutes as submitted. Mr. Hawthorne seconded, and the
motion carried by a vote of 4-0 (Crawford, Reeves, & Williams absent).

3. Approval of Orders of the March 15, 2022, meeting.

Mr. Cullum made a motion to approve the orders with a correction to the date in the first paragraph
of each order from February 15 to March 15. Mr. Hawthorne seconded, and the motion carried by
a vote of 4-0 (Crawford, Reeves, & Williams absent).

4. Appeal Z-2021-42: Request by Ashley Elks for a variance from the side and rear yard
setbacks for an accessory structure, playhouse, located at 302 State Street, which is zoned
Single-Family Residential-4 (SF-4). Tax map number 600-02-03-036.

Melody Kearse, Zoning Coordinator, presented the staff report.

Mr. Cullum asked if any other approvals are needed if this is approved by the Board. Ms. Kearse
responded that they only need to finish up with getting their permit.

Mr. Hawthorne asked how high the building is off the ground. Ms. Kearse responded that it is twelve
inches off the ground.

Mr. Hawthorne asked if has the same setbacks as what was presented before. Ms. Kearse
responded yes.

Mr. Sutton opened the floor to the applicant.
William Elks, 302 State St. (applicant) was available for questions.

Mr. Sutton asked how the structure was lowered. Mr. Elks stated that he used a system of posts &
pulleys to slowly lower the building.

Mr. Sutton opened the floor for public comment and there was none.

Mr. Hawthorne made a motion to approve the variance requests from the side and rear setbacks
for the accessory structure. The motion was seconded by Ms. Brown and was approved by a vote
of 4-0 (Crawford, Reeves, & Williams absent).

Mr. Hawthorne presented the findings, noting that there are extraordinary and exceptional

Page 1 of 6



Rock Hill Zoning Board of Appeals
April 26, 2022

conditions that are unique to the property, application of the ordinance would effectively prohibit or
unreasonably restrict the utilization of the land, and authorization of the will not result in substantial
determent to adjacent land or to the public good, and the character of the district will not be harmed
by the granting of the variance.

5. Appeal Z-2022-16: Request by Robert Whitaker, for a special exception to establish an
automobile repair use at 1207 Saluda St, which is zoned Mixed-Use Corridor (MUC). Tax map
number 625-13-02-001.

Melody Kearse, Zoning Coordinator, presented the staff report.

Mr. Hawthorne asked if the building be filled in where the building steps out? Ms. Kearse stated no,
that shows where pavement line would be. That area would be a planting bed.

Mr. Sutton opened the floor to the applicant.

Robert Whitaker, 1717 Gervais St., Columbia, SC & Sandra Harmon, 815 Hill St., Hartsville. Ms.
Harmon asked why a special exception is required and asked for clarification of the property’s
zoning. She stated that it is unfair to single the applicant out and that the property was commercial
before and he wants to use it commercially.

Ms. Kearse clarified that the zoning of the property is Mixed Use Corridor.

Mr. Whitaker stated that he submitted the drawings to show his dedication to establishing the
business. Mr. Whitaker stated that Ernest Brown has approached him about buying the building
and has told people that he will not allow Mr. Whitaker to open the business.

Mr. Hawthorne asked the applicant what his timeline is for starting work and making improvements.
Mr. Whitaker stated he will be able to start in 2-3 weeks.

Ms. Brown asked Mr. Whitaker if he has been in contact with the Saluda Corridor Business
Association. Mr. Whitaker responded that he has not. Mr. Whitaker stated that he wants to improve
the building and it will not affect value of residential property in the area.

Mr. Hawthorne asked where the existing fence is located that will remain. Ms. Kearse stated that
there is a fence on the back of the property that is covered with vegetation and will remain.

Mr. Sutton opened the floor for public comment.

Vincent James, owner of 1405 Saluda St. and 1227 Saluda St., spoke in opposition and stated that
he commends the applicant for his entrepreneurship, but this is not the right location for this
business. Mr. James stated that there is no guarantee that it will look like what he is showing. He
stated that the area needs to move forward, and the Board holds the key to that.

Melvin Poole, 523 Saluda St., Co-Chair of Saluda Corridor Business Association, stated that the
Association is firmly against the proposal. He stated that Ernest Brown didn’t offer to buy the
property and was not at the last meeting because he has been recovering from surgery for the last
couple of months. Allowing this business will destroy the character of the area that they have been
working to improve. This business has been closed for more than 30 years and the Association is
working to eliminate these types of businesses on Saluda Street. The city has had problems with
other auto-oriented businesses and haven’t been able to get them cleaned up. This business would
be better on E. Black Street with other garages. A vacant building in this case would be better than
a building with a bunch of junk cars around it and a torn down fence in the back.

Mr. Hawthorne asked Mr. Poole if the Association has developed a master plan for the area and
how are you enacting your vision for the area. Mr. Poole stated that they are not trying to shut

Page 2 of 6



Rock Hill Zoning Board of Appeals
April 26, 2022

businesses down for the sake of shutting them down, we are trying to shut business down because
they violate the codes and regulations. He noted that there is a 20-year plan for Saluda Street that's
been on the books for a while now and it will be updated at some point. He stated that they
encourage new business to come that fit the character of what they’re trying to develop.

Mr. Cullum asked Mr. Poole if they are opposed to the other businesses that were shown in the
presentation. Mr. Poole responded no because those businesses will not have junk cars in front.

Mr. Hawthorne stated that a solid fence will be required, and any cars will be shielded from view.
Mr. Poole stated that the city has had problems with other auto-oriented business and none of those
problems have been created. He does not think the drawings will be reality.

Mr. Whitaker clarified that it was Mr. James that asked about purchasing the property, not Ernest
Brown. Mr. Whitaker stated that the last mechanic shop was there in 2015, not 30 years ago.

Ms. Brown asked if the Board’s previous concerns were addressed. Mr. Sutton stated that there
were concerns about what it would look like, and the applicant has provided drawings that can be
incorporated into the approval. The drawings and site plan can be made part of the approval.

Ms. Brown asked who enforces the codes. Ms. Kearse responded that the City’s commercial code
enforcement officer enforces the codes based on what was in effect at the time the site was
developed. International Property Maintenance Code standards deal with the condition of the
property, but the standards are low. Ms. Kearse noted that there are a lot of non-conforming
businesses on Saluda Street that are grandfathered in, specifically business that deal with
automobile sales, auto repair, and wrecker services.

Mr. Cullum asked if there is a specific plan for the area. Ms. Kearse responded that the Saluda
Corridor Master Plan is 23-24 years old and was designed by the original Saluda Corridor Business
Association along with residents along the corridor. The MUC zoning regulations specify building
and site improvements that are required. Ms. Kearse noted that staff would be glad to help with
updates to the plan, including changes to the uses that are allowed.

Mr. Cullum stated that there should be some strong timelines and conditions about what is done
and when it is done. Mr. Sutton stated that the current supply chain issues could be problematic.

Mr. Sutton asked if all improvements have to be done before he can get a C.O. Ms. Kearse stated
that all repairs would have to be made to the inside of the building, the storage yard would have to
be screened and any other conditions added by the Board would have to be completed before he
could open for business. She added that if the special exception is granted and he doesn’t do
anything within 2 years, he has to come back to the Board.

Mr. Hawthorne asked what happens if he starts work and doesn’t finish, does he have to come
back? Ms. Kearse stated that it depends on how much work he does and when permits are pulled.
Building permits are only good for six months but can be extended for valid reasons.

Mr. Cullum made a motion to approve the special exception for auto repair. The motion was
seconded by Mr. Hawthorne. Ms. Brown offered a friendly amendment that the applicant must make
all the required improvements and the improvements per the renderings submitted. The
amendment was accepted by Mr. Cullum. Mr. Sutton called for the vote and the motion was
approved by a vote of 4-0 (Crawford, Reeves, & Williams absent).

Mr. Cullum presented the findings, noting that the proposed use will comply with the use specific
standards; will be appropriate for the location and compatible with the surrounding area; is designed
to have minimal adverse impact; and there will be no environmental impact or injury to nearby

Page 3 of 6



Rock Hill Zoning Board of Appeals
April 26, 2022

properties.

6. Appeal Z-2022-19: Request by Mike Smith for a variance from the secondary front
setback for a fence taller than 4 feet located at 1274 Pelham Wood Drive, which is zoned
Single-Family Residential-5 (SF-5). Tax map number 595-04-01-048.

Bryman Suttle, Planner |, presented the staff report.

Mr. Sutton asked if the variance request is for height and setback? Ms. Kearse responded that if
the variance is granted for the setback, it is automatically approved to be higher than four feet.

Mr. Hawthorne asked what the applicant would need to do to bring the fence into compliance. Mr.
Suttle responded that he would need to shorten the columns or remove them.

Mr. Cullum asked if it is correct that staff was unable to meet any of the four findings. Mr. Suttle
stated that is correct.

Mr. Hawthorne asked about the total height of the columns. Mr. Suttle responded that he believes
they are five feet, but the applicant can verify.

Mr. Sutton opened the floor to the applicant.

Mike Smith, 1274 Pelham Wood Dr., stated that he had to build the columns to height they are so
the twist would go all the way around and they would look correct. He stated that the columns are
five feet tall, and the fence is 38 inches.

Mr. Cullum asked the applicant what his reasons are for not meeting the requirements. Mr. Smith
stated that he didn’t know that he needed a permit.

Mr. Cullum asked the applicant if he built them without consulting City. Mr. Smith stated that he
didn’t think he needed a permit for anything that isn’t attached to the house.

Mr. Sutton opened the floor for public comment.

Anthony Avery, 1262 Asbury Ct., stated that Mr. Smith does magnificent work. It would be a shame
to have to tear the columns down because they look good for the neighborhood. It goes along with
the neighborhood entrance and the new family courthouse.

Gilbert Carswell, 4700 Harkey Rd., Waxhaw, NC, property owner, stated Mr. Smith wanted to
surprise them with the columns. He is very honest, has rented from us for 18 years. He has fixed
the entrance when it was damaged by an uninsured motorist. The columns improve the look of the
whole road. This should be looked at for the greater good.

Douglas Sellers, 1268 Pelham Wood Dr., spoke in favor and asked the Board to come look at the
columns.

Board discussion.

Mr. Hawthorne asked if staff received any negative feedback on the application. Mr. Suttle
responded no.

Mr. Hawthorne asked if the 10-foot setback is to allow for the street to be widened. Ms. Kearse
responded no, it is to avoid creating a wall effect along streets and avoid sight distance problems.

Mr. Cullum made a motion to approve the variance. The motion was seconded by Ms. Brown and
was approved by a vote of 4-0 (Crawford, Reeves, & Williams absent).

Mr. Cullum presented the findings, noting that there are extraordinary and exceptional conditions of
it being near the Courthouse and it looks similar; there are unique conditions with the slope of the

Page 4 of 6



Rock Hill Zoning Board of Appeals
April 26, 2022

lot; strict application of the ordinance would unreasonably restrict the utilization of the land because
the fence is an improvement to the area; and it is not detrimental to the area based on the comments
of residents in the area.

7. Appeal Z-2022-20: Request by Vivian Ramseur with Excel Property Management
Services, for a variance from the required number of parking spaces at 538 S. Dave Lyle
Blvd., which is zoned Neighborhood Commercial (NC). Tax map number 598-24-01-017.

Shana Marshburn, Planner Il, presented the staff report.

Mr. Hawthorne asked for confirmation that the applicant has reached out to several surrounding
areas. Ms. Marshburn stated that is correct.

Mr. Hawthorne asked if it has been investigated whether SCDOT would allow some parking along
Pond Street. Ms. Marshburn stated that staff reached out to SCDOT, and they indicated that parallel
parking may be possible as long as guidelines are met.

Mr. Hawthorne asked if the parallel spaces would be in addition to parking spaces shown on plan?
Ms. Marshburn stated that is correct.

Ms. Brown asked where people parked before. Ms. Kearse stated that they probably parked behind
the building.

Mr. Hawthorne asked if parking anywhere across Dave Lyle Boulevard would meet zoning
requirements. Ms. Marshburn stated that the zoning ordinance doesn’t allow shared parking where
you have to cross an arterial road and ideally, it should be on same side of Dave Lyle Boulevard.

Mr. Sutton asked if there is any use of the property that could get more than two spaces. Ms.
Marshburn stated that due to the size and shape of the lot, only two spaces will fit.

Mr. Hawthorne asked if one of the parking spaces has to be handicapped accessible. Ms.
Marshburn state that is correct.

Mr. Cullum asked how many people would be there at once. Ms. Marshburn stated that the
applicant has stated that they need 10 spaces.

Mr. Sutton opened the floor to the applicant.

Vivian Ramseur, 1782 E. Ebenezer Rd, applicant, stated that she would like approval so
construction can begin, and they can maintain the building.

Ms. Brown asked the applicant if she is concerned about where people will park. Ms. Ramseur
stated that her main concern now is to get construction started so they can preserve the building.
She stated that she will continue to work on getting shared parking.

Ms. Brown asked what the occupancy is for the building. Ms. Ramseur stated that she is not sure
of total maximum number. There will be three offices, but most users will be people that are coming
and going a lot and only staying 30 minutes to an hour at a time.

Mr. Sutton opened the floor for public comment.

Stevyn Buie, 2252 Pinnacle Way, York, SC, stated that he is the design architect for the project. He
stated that they will work with civil engineers to explore the on-street parking. He has spoken to the
church and funeral home, and everyone has parking concerns.

Mr. Cullum stated that it is a great project and great building. He asked if it is possible to defer until
they can talk to SCDOT about parking. Ms. Kearse stated that the applicant needs the variance to
get started on the work to preserve the building.

Page 5 of 6



Rock Hill Zoning Board of Appeals
April 26, 2022

Mr. Cullum asked how long it could possibly take to get SCDOT approval. Ms. Marshburn stated
that a site plan would need to be prepared and submitted to them for review.

Mr. Hawthorne made a motion to approve the variance request. The motion was seconded by Mr.
Sutton and was approved by a vote of 4-0 (Crawford, Reeves, & Williams absent).

Mr. Hawthorne presented the findings, noting that there are extraordinary exceptional conditions;
there are unique conditions that do not apply to other properties in the vicinity; strict application of
the ordinance would effectively prohibit or unreasonably restrict utilization of the land; and it is not
detrimental to the area.

8. Other Business.

Ms. Kearse noted that there is an upcoming continuing education opportunity on May 11 & 12 if
anyone is interested.

9. Adjourn.

There being no further business, Mr. Cullum made a motion to adjourn. The motion was seconded
by Mr. Sutton and approved by a vote of 4-0 (Crawford, Reeves, & Williams absent).

The meeting adjourned at 8:00 p.m.

Page 6 of 6



ROCKHILL

SOUTH CAROLINA

Zoning Board of Appeals Order
Z-2021-42
The Zoning Board of Appeals held a public hearing on Tuesday, April 26, 2022, to consider a
request by Ashley Elks for a variance from the side and rear yard setbacks for an

accessory structure, playhouse, located at 302 State Street, which is zoned Single-Family
Residential-4 (SF-4). Tax map number 600-02-03-036.

Board members in attendance included: Keith Sutton, Rodney Cullum, James Hawthorne, and
Charlotte Brown (Matt Crawford, Chad Williams and Stacey Reeves absent).

After consideration of the evidence and arguments presented, the Board voted to grant the request
based on the following findings of fact:

1. The site may be identified as 302 State St.

2. The property owner is Ashley Elks.

3. This property is zoned Single Family Residential-4 (SF-4).
4

. The request was for a variance from the side and rear yard setbacks for an accessory
structure.

5. The request was advertised to the public according to state law and the City of Rock Hill
Zoning Ordinance. The following public notification actions were taken:

e April 1: Public Hearing notification postcards sent to property owners and tenants within
300 feet of the subject property.

e April 1: Public Hearing notification signs posted on subject property.
e April 1: Zoning Board of Appeals public hearing advertisement published in The Herald.
e Information about the application was posted on the City’s website.
6. During the public hearing, the following comments were heard by the Board:
Melody Kearse, Zoning Coordinator, presented the staff report.

Mr. Cullum asked if any other approvals are needed if this is approved by the Board. Ms.
Kearse responded that they only need to finish up with getting their permit.

Mr. Hawthorne asked how high the building is off the ground. Ms. Kearse responded that it
is twelve inches off the ground.

Mr. Hawthorne asked if has the same setbacks as what was presented before. Ms. Kearse
responded yes.

Mr. Sutton opened the floor to the applicant.

William Elks, 302 State St. (applicant) was available for questions.

Appeal No. Z-2021-42

Ashley Elks

Variance from required setbacks for accessory structure
Page 1




Mr. Sutton asked how the structure was lowered. Mr. Elks stated that he used a system of
posts & pulleys to slowly lower the building.

Mr. Sutton opened the floor for public comment and there was none.

Mr. Hawthorne made a motion to approve the variance requests from the side and rear
setbacks for the accessory structure. The motion was seconded by Ms. Brown and was
approved by a vote of 4-0 (Crawford, Reeves, & Williams absent).

Mr. Hawthorne presented the findings, noting that there are extraordinary and exceptional
conditions that are unique to the property, application of the ordinance would effectively
prohibit or unreasonably restrict the utilization of the land, and authorization of the will not
result in substantial determent to adjacent land or to the public good, and the character of the
district will not be harmed by the granting of the variance.

THE BOARD, THEREFORE, ORDERS:

That the request by Ashley Elks for a variance from the side and rear yard setbacks for
an accessory structure, playhouse, at 302 State St. is APPROVED.

Section 2.12.1 (C) of the Zoning Ordinance states:

Any person having a substantial interest affected by a decision of the Zoning Board of Appeals
may appeal the decision to the Circuit Court in and for York County by filing with the Clerk of the
Court a petition setting for plainly, fully, and distinctly why the decision is contrary to law. The
appeal must be filed within 30 days after the decision of the Zoning Board of Appeals is mailed.
For the purposes of this subsection, “person” includes persons jointly or severally aggrieved by
the decision of the Zoning Board of Appeals.

AND IT IS SO ORDERED.

Matt Crawford, Chairman

Date the Order Was Approved by the Board:

Date the Decision of the Board Was Mailed to the Applicant:

Appeal No. Z-2021-42

Ashley Elks

Variance from required setbacks for accessory structure
Page 2




ROCKHILL

SOUTH CAROLINA

Zoning Board of Appeals Order
Z-2022-16

The Zoning Board of Appeals held a public hearing on Tuesday, April 26, 2022, to consider a
request by Robert Whitaker, for a special exception to establish an automobile repair use
at 1207 Saluda St, which is zoned Mixed-Use Corridor (MUC). Tax map number 625-13-02-
001.

Board members in attendance included: Keith Sutton, Rodney Cullum, James Hawthorne, and
Charlotte Brown (Matt Crawford, Chad Williams and Stacey Reeves absent).

After consideration of the evidence and arguments presented, the Board voted to grant the request
based on the following findings of fact:

1.

o > b

The site may be identified as 1207 Saluda St.

The property owner is Big Dipper Imports LLC (Robert Whitaker).

This property is zoned Mixed Use Corridor (MUC).

The request was for a special exception to establish an automobile repair use.

The request was advertised to the public according to state law and the City of Rock Hill
Zoning Ordinance. The following public notification actions were taken:

e April 1: Public Hearing notification postcards sent to property owners and tenants within
300 feet of the subject property.

e April 1: Public Hearing notification signs posted on subject property.

e April 1: Zoning Board of Appeals public hearing advertisement published in The Herald.
e Information about the application was posted on the City’s website.

During the public hearing, the following comments were heard by the Board:

Melody Kearse, Zoning Coordinator, presented the staff report.

Mr. Hawthorne asked if the building be filled in where the building steps out? Ms. Kearse
stated no, that shows where pavement line would be. That area would be a planting bed.

Mr. Sutton opened the floor to the applicant.

Robert Whitaker, 1717 Gervais St., Columbia, SC & Sandra Harmon, 815 Hill St., Hartsville.
Ms. Harmon asked why a special exception is required and asked for clarification of the
property’s zoning. She stated that it is unfair to single the applicant out and that the property
was commercial before and he wants to use it commercially.

Ms. Kearse clarified that the zoning of the property is Mixed Use Corridor.
Mr. Whitaker stated that he submitted the drawings to show his dedication to establishing the

Appeal No. Z-2022-16

Robert Whitaker

Special exception to establish an auto repair use
Page 1




business. Mr. Whitaker stated that Ernest Brown has approached him about buying the
building and has told people that he will not allow Mr. Whitaker to open the business.

Mr. Hawthorne asked the applicant what his timeline is for starting work and making
improvements. Mr. Whitaker stated he will be able to start in 2-3 weeks.

Ms. Brown asked Mr. Whitaker if he has been in contact with the Saluda Corridor Business
Association. Mr. Whitaker responded that he has not. Mr. Whitaker stated that he wants to
improve the building and it will not affect value of residential property in the area.

Mr. Hawthorne asked where the existing fence is located that will remain. Ms. Kearse stated
that there is a fence on the back of the property that is covered with vegetation and will
remain.

Mr. Sutton opened the floor for public comment.

Vincent James, owner of 1405 Saluda St. and 1227 Saluda St., spoke in opposition and
stated that he commends the applicant for his entrepreneurship, but this is not the right
location for this business. Mr. James stated that there is no guarantee that it will look like
what he is showing. He stated that the area needs to move forward, and the Board holds the
key to that.

Melvin Poole, 523 Saluda St., Co-Chair of Saluda Corridor Business Association, stated that
the Association is firmly against the proposal. He stated that Ernest Brown didn’t offer to buy
the property and was not at the last meeting because he has been recovering from surgery
for the last couple of months. Allowing this business will destroy the character of the area
that they have been working to improve. This business has been closed for more than 30
years and the Association is working to eliminate these types of businesses on Saluda
Street. The city has had problems with other auto-oriented businesses and haven’t been
able to get them cleaned up. This business would be better on E. Black Street with other
garages. A vacant building in this case would be better than a building with a bunch of junk
cars around it and a torn down fence in the back.

Mr. Hawthorne asked Mr. Poole if the Association has developed a master plan for the area
and how are you enacting your vision for the area. Mr. Poole stated that they are not trying
to shut businesses down for the sake of shutting them down, we are trying to shut business
down because they violate the codes and regulations. He noted that there is a 20-year plan
for Saluda Street that’'s been on the books for a while now and it will be updated at some
point. He stated that they encourage new business to come that fit the character of what
they’re trying to develop.

Mr. Cullum asked Mr. Poole if they are opposed to the other businesses that were shown in
the presentation. Mr. Poole responded no because those businesses will not have junk cars
in front.

Mr. Hawthorne stated that a solid fence will be required, and any cars will be shielded from
view. Mr. Poole stated that the city has had problems with other auto-oriented business and
none of those problems have been created. He does not think the drawings will be reality.

Mr. Whitaker clarified that it was Mr. James that asked about purchasing the property, not
Ernest Brown. Mr. Whitaker stated that the last mechanic shop was there in 2015, not 30

Appeal No. Z-2022-16

Robert Whitaker

Special exception to establish an auto repair use
Page 2




years ago.

Ms. Brown asked if the Board’s previous concerns were addressed. Mr. Sutton stated that
there were concerns about what it would look like, and the applicant has provided drawings
that can be incorporated into the approval. The drawings and site plan can be made part of
the approval.

Ms. Brown asked who enforces the codes. Ms. Kearse responded that the City’s commercial
code enforcement officer enforces the codes based on what was in effect at the time the site
was developed. International Property Maintenance Code standards deal with the condition
of the property, but the standards are low. Ms. Kearse noted that there are a lot of non-
conforming businesses on Saluda Street that are grandfathered in, specifically business that
deal with automobile sales, auto repair, and wrecker services.

Mr. Cullum asked if there is a specific plan for the area. Ms. Kearse responded that the
Saluda Corridor Master Plan is 23-24 years old and was designed by the original Saluda
Corridor Business Association along with residents along the corridor. The MUC zoning
regulations specify building and site improvements that are required. Ms. Kearse noted that
staff would be glad to help with updates to the plan, including changes to the uses that are
allowed.

Mr. Cullum stated that there should be some strong timelines and conditions about what is
done and when it is done. Mr. Sutton stated that the current supply chain issues could be
problematic.

Mr. Sutton asked if all improvements have to be done before he can get a C.O. Ms. Kearse
stated that all repairs would have to be made to the inside of the building, the storage yard
would have to be screened and any other conditions added by the Board would have to be
completed before he could open for business. She added that if the special exception is
granted and he doesn’t do anything within 2 years, he has to come back to the Board.

Mr. Hawthorne asked what happens if he starts work and doesn'’t finish- does he have to
come back? Ms. Kearse stated that it depends on how much work he does and when
permits are pulled. Building permits are only good for six months but can be extended for
valid reasons.

Mr. Cullum made a motion to approve the special exception for auto repair. The motion was
seconded by Mr. Hawthorne. Ms. Brown offered a friendly amendment that the applicant
must make all the required improvements and the improvements per the renderings
submitted. The amendment was accepted by Mr. Cullum. Mr. Sutton called for the vote and
the motion was approved by a vote of 4-0 (Crawford, Reeves, & Williams absent).

Mr. Cullum presented the findings, noting that the proposed use will comply with the use
specific standards; will be appropriate for the location and compatible with the surrounding
area; is designed to have minimal adverse impact; and there will be no environmental impact
or injury to nearby properties.

THE BOARD, THEREFORE, ORDERS:

That the request by Robert Whitaker, for a special exception to establish an automobile
repair use at 1207 Saluda St. is APPROVED with CONDITIONS.

Appeal No. Z-2022-16

Robert Whitaker

Special exception to establish an auto repair use
Page 3




Conditions were:

e The applicant must make all the required improvements and the improvements per the
renderings submitted

Section 2.12.1 (C) of the Zoning Ordinance states:

Any person having a substantial interest affected by a decision of the Zoning Board of Appeals
may appeal the decision to the Circuit Court in and for York County by filing with the Clerk of the
Court a petition setting for plainly, fully, and distinctly why the decision is contrary to law. The
appeal must be filed within 30 days after the decision of the Zoning Board of Appeals is mailed.
For the purposes of this subsection, “person” includes persons jointly or severally aggrieved by
the decision of the Zoning Board of Appeals.

AND IT IS SO ORDERED.

Matt Crawford, Chairman

Date the Order Was Approved by the Board:

Date the Decision of the Board Was Mailed to the Applicant:

Appeal No. Z-2022-16

Robert Whitaker

Special exception to establish an auto repair use
Page 4




ROCKHILL

SOUTH CAROLINA

Zoning Board of Appeals Order
Z-2022-19

The Zoning Board of Appeals held a public hearing on Tuesday, April 26, 2022, to consider a
request by Mike Smith for a variance from the secondary front setback for a fence taller
than 4 feet located at 1274 Pelham Wood Dr., which is zoned Single-Family Residential-5
(SF-5). Tax map number 595-04-01-048.

Board members in attendance included: Keith Sutton, Rodney Cullum, James Hawthorne and
Charlotte Brown (Matt Crawford, Chad Williams and Stacey Reeves absent).

After consideration of the evidence and arguments presented, the Board voted to grant the request
based on the following findings of fact:

1.

o > b

The site may be identified as 1274 Pelham Wood Dr.

The property owner is Melodie Smith.

This property is Single-Family Residential-5 (SF-5).

The request was for a variance from the secondary front setback for a fence taller than 4 feet.

The request was advertised to the public according to state law and the City of Rock Hill
Zoning Ordinance. The following public notification actions were taken:

e April 1: Public Hearing notification postcards sent to property owners and tenants within
300 feet of the subject property.

e April 1: Public Hearing notification signs posted on subject property.

e April 1: Zoning Board of Appeals public hearing advertisement published in The Herald.
¢ Information about the application was posted on the City’s website.

During the public hearing, the following comments were heard by the Board:

Bryman Suttle, Planner |, presented the staff report.

Mr. Sutton asked if the variance request is for height and setback? Ms. Kearse responded
that if the variance is granted for the setback, it is automatically approved to be higher than
four feet.

Mr. Hawthorne asked what the applicant would need to do to bring the fence into
compliance. Mr. Suttle responded that he would need to shorten the columns or remove
them.

Mr. Cullum asked if it is correct that staff was unable to meet any of the four findings. Mr.
Suttle stated that is correct.

Mr. Hawthorne asked about the total height of the columns. Mr. Suttle responded that he
believes they are five feet, but the applicant can verify.

Appeal No. Z-2022-19

Mike Smith

Variance from secondary front setback standards for a fence taller than 4 feet
Page 1




Mr. Sutton opened the floor to the applicant.

Mike Smith, 1274 Pelham Wood Drive, stated that he had to build the columns to height they
are so the twist would go all the way around and they would look correct. He stated that the
columns are five feet tall, and the fence is 38 inches.

Mr. Cullum asked the applicant what his reasons are for not meeting the requirements. Mr.
Smith stated that he didn’t know that he needed a permit.

Mr. Cullum asked the applicant if he built them without consulting City. Mr. Smith stated that
he didn’t think he needed a permit for anything that isn’t attached to the house.

Mr. Sutton opened the floor for public comment.

Anthony Avery, 1262 Asbury Ct., stated that Mr. Smith does magnificent work. It would be a
shame to have to tear the columns down because they look good for the neighborhood. It
goes along with the neighborhood entrance and the new family courthouse.

Gilbert Carswell, 4700 Harkey Rd., Waxhaw, NC, property owner, stated Mr. Smith wanted to
surprise them with the columns. He is very honest, has rented from us for 18 years. He has
fixed the entrance when it was damaged by an uninsured motorist. The columns improve the
look of the whole road. This should be looked at for the greater good.

Douglas Sellers, 1268 Pelham Wood Dr., spoke in favor and asked the Board to come look
at the columns.

Board discussion.

Mr. Hawthorne asked if staff received any negative feedback on the application. Mr. Suttle
responded no.

Mr. Hawthorne asked if the 10-foot setback is to allow for the street to be widened. Ms.
Kearse responded no, it is to avoid creating a wall effect along streets and avoid sight
distance problems.

Mr. Cullum made a motion to approve the variance. The motion was seconded by Ms. Brown
and was approved by a vote of 4-0 (Crawford, Reeves, & Williams absent).

Mr. Cullum presented the findings, noting that there are extraordinary and exceptional
conditions of it being near the Courthouse and it looks similar; there are unique conditions
with the slope of the lot; strict application of the ordinance would unreasonably restrict the
utilization of the land because the fence is an improvement to the area; and it is not
detrimental to the area based on the comments of residents in the area.

THE BOARD, THEREFORE, ORDERS:

That the request by Mike Smith for a variance from the secondary front setback for a
fence taller than 4 feet located at 1274 Pelham Wood Dr. is APPROVED.

Section 2.12.1 (C) of the Zoning Ordinance states:

Any person having a substantial interest affected by a decision of the Zoning Board of Appeals
may appeal the decision to the Circuit Court in and for York County by filing with the Clerk of the
Court a petition setting for plainly, fully, and distinctly why the decision is contrary to law. The

Appeal No. Z-2022-19

Mike Smith

Variance from secondary front setback standards for a fence taller than 4 feet
Page 2




appeal must be filed within 30 days after the decision of the Zoning Board of Appeals is mailed.
For the purposes of this subsection, “person” includes persons jointly or severally aggrieved by
the decision of the Zoning Board of Appeals.

AND IT IS SO ORDERED.

Matt Crawford, Chairman

Date the Order Was Approved by the Board:

Date the Decision of the Board Was Mailed to the Applicant:

Appeal No. Z-2022-19
Mike Smith
Variance from secondary front setback standards for a fence taller than 4 feet

Page 3




ROCKHILL

SOUTH CAROLINA

Zoning Board of Appeals Order
Z-2022-20

The Zoning Board of Appeals held a public hearing on Tuesday, April 26, 2022, to consider a
request by Vivian Ramseur with Excel Property Management Services, for a variance from
the required number of parking spaces at 538 S. Dave Lyle Blvd., which is zoned
Neighborhood Commercial (NC). Tax map number 598-24-01-017.

Board members in attendance included: Keith Sutton, Rodney Cullum, James Hawthorne, and
Charlotte Brown (Matt Crawford, Chad Williams and Stacey Reeves absent).

After consideration of the evidence and arguments presented, the Board voted to grant the request
based on the following findings of fact:

1.

o > b

The site may be identified as 538 S. Dave Lyle Blvd.

The property owner is Excel Property Management Services, LLC (Vivian Ramseur).
This property is Neighborhood Commercial (NC).

The request was for a variance from the required number of parking spaces.

The request was advertised to the public according to state law and the City of Rock Hill
Zoning Ordinance. The following public notification actions were taken:

e April 1: Public Hearing notification postcards sent to property owners and tenants within
300 feet of the subject property.

e April 1: Public Hearing notification signs posted on subject property.

e April 1: Zoning Board of Appeals public hearing advertisement published in The Herald.
¢ Information about the application was posted on the City’s website.

During the public hearing, the following comments were heard by the Board:

Shana Marshburn, Planner Il, presented the staff report.

Mr. Hawthorne asked for confirmation that the applicant has reached out to several
surrounding areas. Ms. Marshburn stated that is correct.

Mr. Hawthorne asked if it has been investigated whether SCDOT would allow some parking
along Pond St. Ms. Marshburn stated that staff reached out to SCDOT, and they indicated
that parallel parking may be possible as long as guidelines are met.

Mr. Hawthorne asked if the parallel spaces would be in addition to parking spaces shown on
plan? Ms. Marshburn stated that is correct.

Ms. Brown asked where people parked before. Ms. Kearse stated that they probably parked
behind the building.

Appeal No. Z-2022-20

Vivian Ramseur

Variance from required number of parking spaces
Page 1




Mr. Hawthorne asked if parking anywhere across Dave Lyle Boulevard would meet zoning
requirements. Ms. Marshburn stated that the zoning ordinance doesn’t allow shared parking
where you have to cross an arterial road and ideally, it should be on same side of Dave Lyle
Boulevard.

Mr. Sutton asked if there is any use of the property that could get more than two spaces. Ms.
Marshburn stated that due to the size and shape of the lot, only two spaces will fit.

Mr. Hawthorne asked if one of the parking spaces has to be handicapped accessible. Ms.
Marshburn state that is correct.

Mr. Cullum asked how many people would be there at once. Ms. Marshburn stated that the
applicant has stated that they need 10 spaces.

Mr. Sutton opened the floor to the applicant.

Vivian Ramseur, 1782 E. Ebenezer Rd., applicant, stated that she would like approval so
construction can begin, and they can maintain the building.

Ms. Brown asked the applicant if she is concerned about where people will park. Ms.
Ramseur stated that her main concern now is to get construction started so they can
preserve the building. She stated that she will continue to work on getting shared parking.

Ms. Brown asked what the occupancy is for the building. Ms. Ramseur stated that she is not
sure of total maximum number. There will be three offices, but most users will be people that
are coming and going a lot and only staying 30 minutes to an hour at a time.

Mr. Sutton opened the floor for public comment.

Stevyn Buie, 2252 Pinnacle Way, York, SC, stated that he is the design architect for the
project. He stated that they will work with civil engineers to explore the on-street parking. He
has spoken to the church and funeral home, and everyone has parking concerns.

Mr. Cullum stated that it is a great project and great building. He asked if it is possible to
defer until they can talk to SCDOT about parking. Ms. Kearse stated that the applicant
needs the variance to get started on the work to preserve the building.

Mr. Cullum asked how long it could possibly take to get SCDOT approval. Ms. Marshburn
stated that a site plan would need to be prepared and submitted to them for review.

Mr. Hawthorne made a motion to approve the variance request. The motion was seconded
by Mr. Sutton and was approved by a vote of 4-0 (Crawford, Reeves, & Williams absent).

Mr. Hawthorne presented the findings, noting that there are extraordinary exceptional
conditions; there are unique conditions that do not apply to other properties in the vicinity;
strict application of the ordinance would effectively prohibit or unreasonably restrict utilization
of the land; and it is not detrimental to the area.

THE BOARD, THEREFORE, ORDERS:

That the request by Vivian Ramseur with Excel Property Management Services, for a
variance from the required number of parking spaces at 538 S. Dave Lyle Blvd is
APPROVED.

Appeal No. Z-2022-20

Vivian Ramseur

Variance from required number of parking spaces
Page 2




Section 2.12.1 (C) of the Zoning Ordinance states:

Any person having a substantial interest affected by a decision of the Zoning Board of Appeals
may appeal the decision to the Circuit Court in and for York County by filing with the Clerk of the
Court a petition setting for plainly, fully, and distinctly why the decision is contrary to law. The
appeal must be filed within 30 days after the decision of the Zoning Board of Appeals is mailed.
For the purposes of this subsection, “person” includes persons jointly or severally aggrieved by
the decision of the Zoning Board of Appeals.

AND IT IS SO ORDERED.

Matt Crawford, Chairman

Date the Order Was Approved by the Board:

Date the Decision of the Board Was Mailed to the Applicant:

Appeal No. Z-2022-20

Vivian Ramseur

Variance from required number of parking spaces
Page 3




ROCKHILL

SOUTH CAROLINA

Z-2022-21
Request: Variance from the maximum height of a fence in the front yard for an
attached arbor
Address: 137 Reid Street
Zoning District: Single-Family Residential-5 (SF-5)

Applicant: Kevin Mattingly

Single=%
Family
~Residential

-













VARIANCE APPLICATION

Plan Tracking # Date Received: Case # Z-

Please use additional paper if necessary, for example to list additional applicants or properties, or to elaborate on your
responses to the questions about the request. You may handwrite your responses or type them. You may scan your
responses and submit them by email (see the above fact sheet), since we can accept scanned copies of signatures in
most cases.

PROPERTY INFORMATION

Street address of subject property: 137 Reid St. , Rock Hill, SC
29730

Tax parcel number of subject property: 6271603008 - - -

Property restrictions

Do any recorded deed restrictions or restrictive covenants apply to this property that would prohibit, conflict with, or
be contrary to the activity you are requesting? For example, does your homeowners association or property owners
association prohibit the activity or need to approve itfirst?Yes__ No___

If yes, please describe the requirements:

No
APPLICANT/PROPERTY OWNER INFORMATION
Applicant’s name Mailing address Phone number Email address
Kevin Mattingly 137 Reid St, Rock Hill, SC, 704-577-4532 kdmattingly@gmail.com

29730

Are you the owner of the subject property? O X/Yes O No

If you are not the owner of the subject property, what is your relationship to it (e.g., have it under contract to purchase,
tenant, contractor, real estate agent)

| certify that | have completely read this application and instructions, that | understand all it includes, and that the
information in the application and the attached forms is correct.

Signature: Date:

If you are not the owner of the subject property, the property owner must complete this box.

Name of property owner:

If property owner is an organization/corporation, name of person authorized to represent its property interests:

| certify that the person listed in the person listed above has my permission to represent this property in this
application.

Signature: Date:

Preferred phone number: Email address:

Mailing address:




INFORMATION ABOUT REQUEST

General description of your request

We want to add an arbor across the sidewalk on our property that leads to the front porch. This will allow for climbing
roses to add appeal. The height of the arbor is 8Ft and structures in the front of a property are limited to 4Ft. We are
asking for a variance for the 8Ft high arbor. We feel that this feature will not only add to our property but to the entire
Reid Street area. Since moving here in 2016, we’ve received an award for our restoration efforts and have worked hard

to add positives to our neighborhood.

Findings of fact

Under state law, in order to grant a variance, the Zoning Board of Appeals must find that all four of the following
statements are true about your request. Please explain why you believe your request is true regarding these four
statements.

1. Your land has extraordinary and exceptional conditions that pertain to it.

Yes...

Our home is a part of the historic Confederate street and East Town area. It was built somewhere around
1904 and is a valued piece of the historic landscape In Rock Hill.

2. Other property in the vicinity of your land does not generally have those same extraordinary and exceptional
conditions.

No...
Variance Application Page 2 Last Updated 4/29/2022



While there are other historic homes in this area, the architecture of our home is unique. We haven’t seen
any other Homes with its characteristics. It is just behind the White Home and was likely one of the first
homes built on Reid St. We feel our home is a complementary property to the area.

3. If the City applied its regular zoning requirements to your property, your use of the land would be
unreasonably restricted or effectively prohibited.

Yes...

With the current zoning restrictions, we’d have to essentially scrap a project that we feel would be a
positive to the community and add to the curb appeal of our home.

4. If the Zoning Board of Appeals grants the variance request, it will not harm adjacent land or the public good.

No...

We feel that the addition of this arbor will be a positive to our neighbors properties as well as ours. We’ve
asked for input from our neighbors and are providing e-mails expressing their support.

Variance Application Page 3 Last Updated 4/29/2022



Exhibits
Please list any documents that you are submitting in support of this application. The ones listed below are

suggested, but you may provide others that you believe would be helpful, and in some cases, staff or the
Zoning Board of Appeals may request other exhibits as well.

O Site plan
O Photos of the area of the property that is the subject of the request

Variance Application Page 4 Last Updated 4/29/2022






From: Marshburn, Shana

To: Kearse, Melody
Subject: FW: Neighbor Approval E-mail
Date: Monday, April 11, 2022 11:55:07 AM

Another email in support of request...

Shana Marshburn

Planner Il

Planning & Development

City of Rock Hill

P.0. Box 11706

155 Johnston Street (29730)

Rock Hill, South Carolina 29731-1706
0: 803-326-2456

Shana.Marshburn@cityofrockhill.com

From: Kevin Mattingly <kdmattingly@gmail.com>

Sent: Friday, April 8, 2022 9:41 AM

To: Marshburn, Shana <Shana.Marshburn@cityofrockhill.com>
Subject: FW: Neighbor Approval E-mail

CAUTION: not from City of Rock Hill...from Unknown Source...Beware, proceed with CAUTION

A little colorful but this is from my neighbor at 138 Reid St.

From: Steven Gucciardi <sgucciardi@mac.com>
Sent: Thursday, April 7, 2022 7:58 PM
To: Kevin Mattingly <kdmattingl mail.com>
Subject: Re: Neighbor Approval E-mail

Should I send the email to you or to the City of Rock Hill? Below is my response. If | need to send it
to the City, let me know.

Here’s my response:

My name is Steven Gucciardi and my wife Stephanie Snow own the house across the Street from the
Mattingly’s. Our address is 138 Reid St. Since the height requirement for an arbor is four feet tall
neither Kim nor Kevin Mattingly are midgets they therefore would not be able to comfortably walk
under a four foot arbor. Additionally, I’'m not sure how the mail man or their visitors are supposed
to circumnavigate a four foot arbor.

Because the Mattingly’s always added tasteful touches to their homes and their good neighbors that
have been making substantial and real investments in their property, Stephanie and | both approve
of the proposed arbor. Please approve their rezoning request.


mailto:Shana.Marshburn@cityofrockhill.com
mailto:Melody.Kearse@cityofrockhill.com
mailto:sgucciardi@mac.com
mailto:kdmattingly@gmail.com

The historical restrictions in our neighborhood have resulted in unintended externalities. Most all of
us want to make property improvements but we’re severely limited in what we can do. History is
not only about the past. History represents the past, present and future. Every day that we live we
are also placing our imprint on history and are therefore a part of the historical record.

Please approve this request so that Reid Street can blossom and reflect the current historical
residents.

Thank you,
Steve Gucciardi and Stephanie Snow

138 Reid St
Rock Hill, SC 29730

On Apr 7, 2022, at 2:13 PM, Kevin Mattingly <kdmattingly@gmail.com> wrote:

Hey Steve,

We’re wanting to put an arbor across the sidewalk leading up the front porch. Kimberly
plans on planting climbing roses at each end to add appeal. Since it is taller than 4Ft
and will be integrated into the fence, | have to request a zoning variance. Can you send
me an e-mail with your support for this project. | know Rob is good and of course Dan
has to be. I'll ask William and Sandy too.

If you can do this, it would be greatly appreciated.

Kev

Thanks,
Kevin d. Mattingly


mailto:kdmattingly@gmail.com

To whom it may concern,

My name is Rob Murphy and I live at 131 Reid St, Rock Hill, SC, 29730.
My nzighbors at 137 Reid St, Kevin and Kimberly Mattingly talked to
me about their desire to add an arbor across their sidewalk leading to
their front porch. Based on our conversation, I understand that there
is a height restriction of 4Ft and that a variance is required to
integrate their arbor.

I'm writing this e-mail in support of their project. If you have
questions, you can contact me via e-mail or phone at 704-361-0302.

2

—_

Robert D. Murphy

131 Reid St.

Rock Hill, S€ 29730

PH: 704.361.0302

EMAIL: rob@rdmelec.com



ROCKHILL

SOUTH CAROLINA

Pt

Z.-2022-21
/A Subject Property

Zoning Districts

Downtown (DTWN)

- General Commercial (GC)
Limited Commercial (LC)
Neighborhood Office (NO)
Office and Institutional (Ol)
Single-Family 5 (SF-5)

Zoning Data

Current Zoning
SF-5

S
0 100 200

Feet

Planning & Development
Department
City of Rock Hill

05/17/2022































2764 FAITH BLVD

6 6 2 0 7 o 1

XX

J M COPE 199 S. CHERRY RD 803.242.5692
INVESTMENTS LLC  ROCK HILL, SC

ANDREW M. COPE

n/a

Andrew Cope

29730

acope@jmcope.com

4/10/22


DScogins
Typewritten Text
2764 FAITH BLVD

DScogins
Typewritten Text
29730

DScogins
Typewritten Text
6

DScogins
Typewritten Text
6

DScogins
Typewritten Text
2

DScogins
Typewritten Text
0

DScogins
Typewritten Text
7

DScogins
Typewritten Text
0

DScogins
Typewritten Text
1

DScogins
Typewritten Text
3

DScogins
Typewritten Text
7

DScogins
Typewritten Text
4

DScogins
Typewritten Text
XX

DScogins
Typewritten Text

DScogins
Typewritten Text
J M COPE
INVESTMENTS LLC
ANDREW M. COPE

DScogins
Typewritten Text
199 S. CHERRY RD
ROCK HILL, SC

DScogins
Typewritten Text
803.242.5692

DScogins
Typewritten Text
acope@jmcope.com

DScogins
Typewritten Text
x

DScogins
Typewritten Text
n/a

DScogins
Typewritten Text
Andrew Cope

DScogins
Typewritten Text
4/10/22

Andrew
Pen
y


The development of a new, entirely enclosed, self storage facility.

This development is over 4 acres but has been subdivided to allow
for multiple tenants. Shared pond, access, tree save, dumpsters

and drives (cross accessed) are in place. Property is secondary
roads and behind major commercial areas on Cherry Rd and Home Depot.

Secondary road locations in a commercial district are approved
for this use. The building will meet commercial zoning appearance

requirements.

No adverse impacts are anticipated. Tree saves or replacement

trees will be utilized as shown. Traffic and parking are minimal

for a facility of this nature.


DScogins
Typewritten Text
The development of a new, entirely enclosed, self storage facility.

DScogins
Typewritten Text
This development is over 4 acres but has been subdivided to allow

for multiple tenants.  Shared pond, access, tree save, dumpsters 

and drives (cross accessed) are in place.  Property is secondary 


DScogins
Typewritten Text
roads and behind major commercial areas on Cherry Rd and Home Depot.

DScogins
Typewritten Text
Secondary road locations in a commercial district are approved 

for this use.  The building will meet commercial zoning appearance 

requirements.

DScogins
Typewritten Text
No adverse impacts are anticipated.  Tree saves or replacement 

trees will be utilized as shown.  Traffic and parking are minimal 



DScogins
Typewritten Text
for a facility of this nature.


Project will have no additional impact on the environment. Site
is already cleared and prepped for the facility. Site previously

approved.

After lease up, storage facility would be lightly trafficked. It
will meet all development standards so the appearance would blend

and enhance the areas.

The proposed use will have no impact on neighboring land owners

uses.


DScogins
Typewritten Text
After lease up, storage facility would be lightly trafficked.  It

will meet all development standards so the appearance would blend

and enhance the areas.

DScogins
Typewritten Text
Project will have no additional impact on the environment.  Site 

is already cleared and prepped for the facility.  Site previously 

approved.

DScogins
Typewritten Text
The proposed use will have no impact on neighboring land owners

uses.


XX

see drone photos


DScogins
Typewritten Text
xx

DScogins
Typewritten Text
see drone photos


2764 FAITH BLVD, ROCK HILL, SC 29730
6 62 07 013 7 4

XX

J M Cope Investments 199 Cherry Rd 803.242.5692 acope@jmcope.com
LLC Rock Hi”, SC

Andrew M. Cope
XX

n/a

Andrew M. Cope 4/10/22



Andrew
Typewritten Text
2764 FAITH BLVD, ROCK HILL, SC 

Andrew
Typewritten Text
29730

Andrew
Typewritten Text
6   6  2   0  7    0  1   3   7   4

Andrew
Typewritten Text
xx

Andrew
Typewritten Text
J M Cope Investments LLC
Andrew M. Cope

Andrew
Typewritten Text
199 Cherry Rd
Rock Hill, SC 

Andrew
Typewritten Text
s

Andrew
Typewritten Text
803.242.5692    acope@jmcope.com

Andrew
Typewritten Text
xx

Andrew
Typewritten Text
n/a

Andrew
Typewritten Text
4/10/22

Andrew
Pen
o

Andrew
Typewritten Text
Andrew M. Cope


As per attached layout, J. M. Cope Investments LLC would like to
develop a new self storage facility. The facility will be entirely

enclosed and conditioned. Rock Hill Zoning restrictions require

at least 3 acres for minimum for self storage (4.3.3.3.15). The intent
of the code does to appear to be for vertical storage and the overall

site is is above 4 acres before it was split when developed for 2 tenants.

The development is over 4 acres but has been subdivided to allow

for multiple tenants. Shared pond, access, tree save, dumpsters

and drives (cross accessed) are in place. Property is secondary

roads and behind major commercial areas on Cherry Rd and Home Depot.

Multiple other properties nearby are in the primary commerical
one on Cherry Rd and Celanese and not suitable for Storage. Other

smaller parcels would be not be feasible due the requirement for
detention pond, tree saves, entries, etc.


Andrew
Typewritten Text
As per attached layout, J. M. Cope Investments LLC would like to 

develop a new self storage facility. The facility will be entirely 

enclosed and conditioned. Rock Hill Zoning restrictions require 

Andrew
Typewritten Text




Andrew
Typewritten Text
at least 3 acres for minimum for self storage (4.3.3.3.15). The intent

of the code does to appear to be for vertical storage and the overall 

site is is above 4 acres before it was split when developed for 2 tenants.

Andrew
Typewritten Text
The development is over 4 acres but has been subdivided to allow 

for multiple tenants. Shared pond, access, tree save, dumpsters



Andrew
Typewritten Text
and drives (cross accessed)

Andrew
Typewritten Text
are in place.

Andrew
Typewritten Text
Property is secondary


Andrew
Typewritten Text
roads and behind major commercial areas on Cherry Rd and Home Depot.

Andrew
Typewritten Text
Multiple other properties nearby are in the primary commerical

one on Cherry Rd and Celanese and not suitable for Storage. Other 

smaller parcels would be not be feasible due the requirement for 


Andrew
Typewritten Text
detention pond, tree saves, entries, etc.


Storage would be not permitted on this site if the multi-tenant

aspects of the site (drives, access, pond, tree save) are taken

into account. The intent of the code was also for smaller single

story storage units and not urban style multi-story facilities.

After lease up, storage facility would be lightly trafficked. It

will meet all development standards so the appearance would blend

and enhance the areas.

XX

see drone photos


Andrew
Typewritten Text
Storage would be not permitted on this site if the multi-tenant 

aspects of the site (drives, access, pond, tree save) are taken



Andrew
Typewritten Text
into account. The intent of the code was also for smaller single 

story storage units and not urban style multi-story facilities.

Andrew
Typewritten Text
After lease up, storage facility would be lightly trafficked. It 

will meet all development standards so the appearance would blend 

Andrew
Typewritten Text
and enhance the areas.

Andrew
Typewritten Text
x

Andrew
Typewritten Text
x

Andrew
Typewritten Text
see drone photos







AutoCAD SHX Text
35'x35'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB-312 TOP-607.72 BOTTOM-607.01 INV. IN-603.47 INV. IN-603.47(FROM CB#321) INV. OUT-603.37

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH RIM=591.16 INV. IN=583.86 INV. OUT=583.76

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH RIM=586.07 INV. IN=577.77 INV. OUT=577.62

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH RIM=599.34 INV. IN=594.64 INV. OUT=5941.49

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH RIM=599.34 INV. IN=594.64 INV. OUT=5941.49

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB-321 TOP-607.77 BOTTOM-607.00 INV. OUT-603.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB-432 TOP-601.19 BOTTOM-600.46 INV. IN-597.39(FROM CB#299) INV. IN-597.39(FROM CB#423) INV. OUT-597.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB-387 TOP-603.23 BOTTOM-602.74 INV. IN-598.03 INV. OUT-597.83

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB-299 TOP-606.72 BOTTOM-605.96 INV. IN-602.52(FROM CB#312) INV. IN-602.52(FROM CB#308) INV. OUT-602.42

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB-308 TOP-606.72 BOTTOM-605.94 INV. OUT-602.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST DI

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB-730 TOP-597.54 BOTTOM-596.78 INV. IN-591.29(FROM CB#733) INV. IN-591.29 INV. OUT-581.79

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB-423 TOP-601.34 BOTTOM-600.63 INV. OUT-597.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB-733 TOP-596.69 BOTTOM-595.91 INV. IN-592.84 INV. OUT-592.69

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB-396 TOP-603.15 BOTTOM-602.61 INV. IN-597.30 INV. OUT-597.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB-384 TOP-599.30 BOTTOM-598.77 INV. IN-592.90 INV. OUT-592.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST DI

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB-375 TOP-599.19 BOTTOM-598.75 INV. IN-593.29(FROM CB#396) INV. IN-592.29(FROM CB#384) INV. OUT-592.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
60' PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH RIM=582.07 INV. IN=576.17 INV. OUT=576.07

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX 8" PVC WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX 8" PVC WATER


ROCKHILL

SOUTH CAROLINA ”
/  Gp

L=

Z7-2022-22

/| Subject Property

Zoning Districts

I Community Commercial (CC)

I General Commercial (GC)
Industry Business (IB)

Industry General (I1G)

. Master Planned Commercial
m (MP-C)

Zoning Data

Current Zoning

200

Feet

Planning & Development
Department
City of Rock Hill

05/17/2022




Request:

Address:

Zoning District:

Applicant:

ROCKHILL

SOUTH CAROLINA

Z-2022-23
Variance from the maximum amount of window signage
1111 N Anderson Road
General Commercial (GC)

Greg Fatool




Case No. Z-2022-23
% I{OCKHILL Staff Report to Zoning Board of Appeals

FHRTH i SRl s Meeting Date: May 17, 2022
Request: Variance from the maximum allowed window signage.
Address: 1111 N. Anderson Rd.

Tax Map No.: 634-07-01-013

Zoning District: General Commercial (GC)

Applicant: Gregg Fatool on behalf of Pelican’s SnoBalls
Property Owner: GT LDS, LLC

1626 Wedgefield Dr.
Rock Hill, SC 29732

Background

The owner of Pelican’s SnoBalls, who has an existing location at 764 Saluda St., is
looking to open a second location at 1111 N. Anderson Rd. The second location would
be inside of a building that has sat vacant since 2008 when it was home to Wachovia
Bank. The site is located on N. Anderson Road and is accessed through the adjoining
site that is currently under redevelopment.

In March of 2022, the business installed window signage. It is important to note that while
window signage does not require staff review or permitting, it does, however, have
standards that must be followed.

The standards from the Zoning Ordinance relative to window signage are as follows:

Chapter 8: Section 8.10.4 Signs Exempt from Permitting Requirements

Window signs in commercial zoning districts or commercial areas of mixed-use or
planned zoning districts that are painted on or affixed to the inside or outside of the
glass so as to be fully visible from off of the property. The total area of exempt
window signs must not exceed the area allowed for permitted wall signs for the
same fagade or 50% of the window area, whichever is less. This exemption is not
intended to allow prohibited sign types, such as flashing signs or lights, to be
placed inside a window in order to draw attention to the business.

Based on the language above, the applicant would be allowed window signage not to
exceed the same amount allowed for wall signage; or 50% of the window area, whichever
is less. While staff does not know the exact square footage of the window area, judging
by the number of windows and their size, staff would consider the lesser of the two to be
the amount allowed for wall signage. In this case, wall signage on the primary facade is
allowed at one square foot per one linear foot, which for an approximately 43-linear-foot
building, this would yield a 43-square-foot sign. The same amount would be allowed on
any secondary fagcade. Based on the above calculation, window signage on this building
would be limited to 43 sq. ft. on any fagade of the building. Therefore, the applicant is



Staff Report to Zoning Board of Appeals
Z-2022-23
Page 2

seeking a variance to allow a wall sign that is larger in size than what would be allowed
under the ordinance.

Site Description

The site is located on N. Anderson Road, just south of the Cherry Road/N. Anderson
Road intersection. It is adjacent to Go Store It Self-Storage which is located inside of the
former K-Mart building. Other nearby uses include an auto repair shop, a hotel, and
manufactured/modular home dealer. Zoned General Commercial (GC), the site is
completely surrounded by other General Commercial (GC) zoned properties.

Description of Intent for General Commercial (GC) Zoning District

Although originally established to apply to lands being used commercially that did not fit
into one of the other commercial districts, it is now the intent of this ordinance that the GC
district be phased out over time by not allowing new rezonings to the district

Analysis of Requests for Variance
Required Findings of Fact

Staff will base its recommendation on an analysis of the below findings. The Zoning Board
of Appeals may approve a variance only upon finding that the applicant has demonstrated
that all four of the below findings are met.

The required findings are shown below in italics, followed by staff’'s assessment of each
finding in non-italicized font.

1. Extraordinary and Exceptional Conditions

There are extraordinary and exceptional conditions pertaining to the particular piece
of land.

There are limited extraordinary and exceptional conditions pertaining to this particular
piece of land, as it is similarly situated along the road as other buildings along the N.
Anderson Road corridor as it relates to the setback. The only condition that staff could
identify is that very little window area exists on the front of the building. However,
based off the maximum wall signage allotment set forth in the Zoning Ordinance, the
building would be allowed to have an approximately 43-square-foot sign on all sides
of the building, if desired. With that said, it could also have up to 43 sq. ft. in window
signage. Staff believes that this amount seems appropriate, as the building is only set
back approximately 30 feet from N. Anderson Road. There are other buildings
situated along the N. Anderson Road corridor that are set back farther and have not
needed to apply for a variance to allow for signage beyond what the Zoning Ordinance
allows.

It is important to note that the applicant has stated that the extraordinary and
exceptional condition is that wall signage information was not directly included in a
feasibility survey report that it was provided back in August of 2021. Staff does not
believe this to be an extraordinary and exceptional condition as it cannot thoroughly



Staff Report to Zoning Board of Appeals
Z-2022-23
Page 3

advise of Zoning requirements in a document that is meant to be a summary document
advising the applicant of the feasibility of its proposal for the site.

2. Unique Conditions

In terms of the building’s distance from the street, there are buildings that are set back
a similar distance and ones that are setback farther. In both instances, variances have
not been needed, as those businesses have been able to maintain visibility with the
signage size that is allotted by the Zoning Ordinance.

3. Strict Application Deprives Use

Because of the conditions, the application of this Ordinance to the land would
effectively prohibit or unreasonably restrict the utilization of the land.

If the variance were not granted, the applicant would still be able to have window
signage, however, it would not be allowed to be as large as what has been installed.
If the applicant were to minimize the window signage, they would also be able to have
wall signage in addition to that. Furthermore, there is a monument base where a sign
used to be located that isn't being used. There are multiple opportunities for
permanent signage to be installed.

4. Not Detrimental

The authorization of the Variance Permit will not result in substantial detriment to
adjacent land, or to the public good, and the character of the district will not be harmed
by the granting of the variance.

The sign is out of scale based on the size of the windows on the building as three
windows are entirely covered in signage. The general idea behind window signage is
to allow businesses the opportunity to make visible things that normally would not be
included on permanent wall signage, as they would take away space from advertising
the name of the business and messages would sometimes change. For example, a
coffee shop might have window signage disclosing hours of operation, in addition to
displaying language such as “fresh coffee”, “bagels”, “smoothies”, and so on. In those
cases, advertising such language would be done in limited amounts so as not to cover

entire window areas.
Not Grounds for Variance

Variance requests cannot be based on the ability of the land to be used more profitably if
the requests are granted.

Public Input
Staff has taken the following actions to notify the public about this public hearing:

e April 29: Sent public hearing notification postcards to property owners and tenants
within 300 feet of the subject property.

e April 29: Posted public hearing signs on subject property.
e April 29: Advertised the Zoning Board of Appeals public hearing in The Herald.



Staff Report to Zoning Board of Appeals
Z-2022-23
Page 4

¢ Information about this request was posted to the City’s website
Staff has not received any comments from the public at the time of writing this report.

Staff Recommendation

Staff was not able to make any of the findings, therefore, it cannot recommend approval
of the request.

Attachments
e Application and supporting documents

e Zoning map

Staff Contact:

Shana Marshburn, Planner Il
803.326.2456
shana.marshburn@cityofrockhill.com



mailto:shana.marshburn@cityofrockhill.com

VARIANCE APPLICATION
Plan Tracking # Date Received: Case # Z-

Please use additional paper if necessary, for example to list additional applicants or properties, or to elaborate on your
responses to the questions about the request. You may handwrite your responses or type them. You may scan your

responses and submit them by email (see the above fact sheet), since we can accept scanned copies of signatures in
most cases.

PROPERTY INFORMATION

Street address of subject property: _[//’ N A n a/oy.; D1 ﬁ'{ ,Rock Hill,sc_) T730
Tax parcel number of subject property: _(_ 3 4. O 7Z- 0 { -0 ] 3

Property restrictions
Do any recorded deed restrictions or restrictive covenants apply to this property that would prohibit, conflict with, or

be contrary to the activity you are requesting? For example, does your homeowners association or property owners
association prohibit the activity or need to approve it first? Yes No o~

If yes, please describe the requirements:

APPLICANT/PROPERTY OWNER INFORMATION

Applicant’s name Mailing address Phone number Email address
63,}7 Fa ool 1626 Wedgeliolf|(@11) G06~7107 Gresy @ P06
Rock Hell S¢ ra132 WS En

Are you the owner of the subject property? E{es [l No

If you are not the owner of the subject property, what is your relationship to it (e.g., have it under contract to purchase,
tenant, contractor, real estate agent)

I certify that | have completely read this application and instructions, that | understand all it includes, and that the
information in the application and the attached forms is correct.

Signaturezw Date: 4\ M,\ A

If you are not the owner of the subject property, the property owner must complete this box.

Name of property owner:

If property owner is an organization/corporation, name of person authorized to represent its property interests:

I certify that the person listed in the person listed above has my permission to represent this property in this
application.

Signature: Date;

Preferred phone number: Email address:

Mailing address:

Variance Application Page 1 Last Updated 11/20/2018



INFORMATION ABOUT REQUEST

General descriptlpn of your riquest

B readung Yhe
Neoted Netung clomd-unndow siqns, of by menhend wall tnd Lrec
64&“% ‘5@\5 j W W ok\i'M-pf;M re: wﬂ,t::; ‘Q(QPHM Bur inkerthos s
w\}d.ou) S%Sns 1 SO we Qa-\— a_sgu{{}q’rw: we. Coud proced ww Concem,
Aller purUnas g wu-dow Siqns %cg,": (ju.nurq ! Pevelopmowk now indurmed, uie Yo
Wore are rw\:s-%ﬁ:r we Violaked . O qodd s Yo et pMhe wind ow sl:sni“f)ewelfmad

Findings of fact

Under state law, in order to grant a variance, the Zoning Board of Appeals must find that all four of the following
statements are true about your request. Please explain why you believe your request is true regarding these four
statements.

1. Yourland has extraordinary and exceptional conditions that pertain to it.

LM Arderso¥Opecte has been Vitadked S mprecthan 10 earsThe Gan.
unstocomplele adslal rercahon e tansteem e Budtig pmti:erg Aam:nj
ey Buswics kil yoledinghe corenke thke Buiding o adhere o Farchion
rudes A‘- profedineMie Qiand, W wonbed fooreate crcun, Qtbrition drawing nwaly
Woukd Dortay on InVehig ler'wss.?,\v\w Commundy y Wil &hy) not evpcsing
Garthice. Seceds bt public,

2. Other property in the vicinity of your land does not generally have those same extraordinary and exceptional
conditions.

“the Suroenduing p 65 cuwe well estaolished buSings's Lo tn Mg
3.6 J
wew Ynoun names) Wy Slep, CodenCoral . ede. W are g svail buses;
WP o ofead ned forowrcustorrersts 4 e
-

Variance Application Page 2 Last Updated 11/20/2018

1or W /e pefom Whe cdoy, a\owzl—Sljgns, i+ szd-r-i"aa,u\'




3. If the City applied its regular zoning requirements to your property, your use of the land would be
unreasonably restricted or effectively prohibited.

()Uf m(l\of‘ Qurpc&ﬁ was j\‘o(,r:@:k cmural &‘Q‘D«Qﬂfc o wold Serve.
adusal purposes, b AW dreat albrhione cupropeds thact
WOS VLAt plug gher awmq AN Fhng —QnehA\x, Iy
Stk =S Ol b e rs. '

4, |f the Zoning Board of Appeals grants the variance request, it will not harm adjacent land or the public good.

Nihe Widow Hural wil draw postive a%l’ﬂ'\hf Yo Where a orce

(un down , Yoeany bmklmx waS (\enqh\gor\(guswgés wouuok
\);r:&-& Lo L nea® vy CuSto rer Srati e dra winp
ove Cb\»l’;rﬁ'\Oq Qo bLLQl'\QQS.S as well.

Exhibits

Please list any documents that you are submitting in support of this application. The ones listed below are
suggested, but you may provide others that you believe would be helpful, and in some cases, staff or the
Zoning Board of Appeals may request other exhibits as well.

[] Site plan
Photos of the area of the property that is the subject of the request

e feasibibly Surveyreport

Variance Application Page 3 Last Updated 11/20/2018




20201353
Pelican's Snoballs - 1111 N. Anderson Rd. - Feasibility
1111 N. Anderson Road

Feasibility Survey Report -

D. PERMANENT SIGNS

All new wall or freestanding signs (including re-facing of existing signs) must be reviewed for compliance with
current zoning standards. Please see
https://www.cityofrockhill.com/departments/planning-and-development/permit-application-center/sign-permits
for more information. Your signage contractor (or you, if you are installing the sign yourself) must submit the
attached sign permit application prior to installation so that we can ensure that the standards are met.

E. TEMPORARY SIGNS

All businesses are allowed to have temporary signs according to zoning standards, a summary of which is
located here:

https://www.cityofrockhill.com/departments/planning-and-development/permit-application-center/sign-permits.

Additionally, new businesses are allowed to have some special Grand Opening signage, which is also
explained on that webpage.

Industrial Pre-Treatment - Eric Gensemer - eric.gensemer@cityofrockhill.com - Approved
803-329-8703

Review Comments:

No Pretreatment concerns.

8/13/2020 Page 5 of 5
























Staff Report to Zoning Board of Appeals
Z-2022-24
Page 4

e April 29: Advertised the Zoning Board of Appeals public hearing in The Herald.

Other than the comments made to staff by the current owner of 1572 W. Main Street, staff
has not received any feedback about this application.

Staff Recommendation

Staff recommends approval for the variance based on the analysis above and specifically
noting the following:

e The group home is small and will act more as a residential use than a commercial
use.

e The fence allows the applicant to secure the property.
e The neighbor is in support of having the fence located on the property line.

Attachments
e Application
e Applicant’'s Fence Plan
e Letter in Support
e Zoning Map

Staff Contact:

Melody Kearse, Zoning Coordinator
803.329.7088
melody.kearse@cityofrockhill.com







VARIANCE APPLICATION
Property Information
Street Address: 1568 West Main Street, Rock Hill, SC 29732

Tax Parcel Number of subject property: 5950201001, 5950201002, 5950201003 Since our last
application these three lots have been combined as one lot under the address of 1568 West Main St.

Applicant/Property owner information:

Applicant name: Truck of Love

Mailing address: 1455 George Dunn Rd., Rock Hill, SC 29730
Phone # 803-207-4078

Email address: fullertonsusan@gmail.com

INFORMATION ABOUT REQUEST
General description of your request:

We want to erect a 6 foot vinyl fence along the property lines on the west and north sides of the
property. The east side currently has a dense buffer of plants and chain link fencing that does not need
to be disturbed.

Findings of fact:
1. Your land has extraordinary and exceptional conditions that pertain to it.

The land was once three parcels. As of June 2021 it has been recorded as one parcel under the address
of 1568 West Main St. The north cottage was built very close to the property line. The west cottage has
a side yard that has been fenced in on the west property line. Our property is between two residential
properties and currently has a chain link fence on the west and east sides on the property line.

The back of the property is very secluded from the street, has a sharp angle that is difficult to see
because of lots of bushes, and because of that we have seen evidence of transient camping and lots of
trash.

The North side has an existing chain link fence that is about 50 feet from our property line on the
adjacent property. We propose putting our fence on our property line. This would keep the water
heater, utilities, and back door of the north cottage within our boundaries and accessible for repairs.
There are some vacant trailers on the north side. That property and ours were formerly owned by the
same family which arbitrarily erected the chain link fence to separate their home from the trailers.
Beyond the trailers is a cemetery.

A fence on the west and north property lines is suitable in this location. Although we will house up to
fifteen women, our residence will be a home like the homes on either side of us. We are not a big
business. The fence on the property line will give us more space for various outdoor projects.


mailto:fullertonsusan@gmail.com

2. Other property in the vicinity of your land does not generally have those same extraordinary
and exceptional conditions.

We are in a mixed use neighborhood. The neighbor to the west is a small new residential home. They
are currently erecting a six foot wooden fence across the back (north) property line of their lot. The
three foot -high chain link fence on our shared west property line extends to the end of the front
cottage. There is currently a six foot high fence from the back wall of the west cottage to the property
line. The neighbor on the west, Mr. Morgan, has enthusiastically approved our desire to put a fence on
the property line next to his house.

The North neighbor, as | have already stated, is a cemetery and empty trailers. There is already a buffer
from the trailer’s fence to our property line that is mostly grass.

A fence along the west and north property lines will be consistent with other properties near us.

Our east neighbor has a much larger property than ours and the house is set very far from our property.
The buffer of trees and bushes along with remnants of a wooden rail fence and chain link fence on the
property line extending to the sidewalk effectively screen their property from ours.

To our south is the four lane West Main Street with the Family Court directly across from us.

3. |If the city applied its regular zoning requirements to your property, your use of the land would
be unreasonably restricted or effectively prohibited.

To place the fence inside a twenty foot buffer would allow transients access to the west and north sides
of our property without our knowledge.

To place the fence inside the twenty foot buffer would leave the back door to the west cottage in the
buffer zone. It would negatively impact the amount of parking space needed on the west side of the
property. It would bisect the north cottage leaving the utilities and water heater and back door in the
buffer zone. It would have the east side door of the main house opening into the buffer zone.

We want to be a good neighbor to the two residential homes on either side of us. Fencing on the west
and north property lines will keep us all safer from anyone who might wander back there.

4. If the Zoning Board of Appeals grants the variance request, it will not harm adjacent land or
the public good.

We will be opening a fifteen bed homeless women’s shelter on this property. We will have daily
programming and activities for our women geared to enabling them to overcome the traumas they have
endured. Our women will be closely supervised with 24 hour a day 7 days a week staff and volunteers.
We will have strict quiet times in the mornings and evenings.

To place our west and north fences on the property lines will ensure the safety and wellbeing of our
women and our neighbors. On the west side we will simply be improving an already existing fence. It will
give us more flexibility with our outdoor space and programming for the women. Part of the everyday
schedule will include teaching about nature, gardening, growing some of our own food, and relaxation in
nature. This property is so secluded in the back that we will be able to have the privacy needed to
conduct our daily activities while not disturbing any neighbors. It is such a lovely peaceful property that



we want the women to enjoy all of it. It is the perfect space for our women to learn how to live in new
ways.

We want to improve this property which has been empty and deteriorating for the past five years. We
want it to enhance the neighborhood. We will keep it in good repair and make sure it is a visual asset on
the street.

Our intention is to invite neighbors in to meet our residents so that we can all be part of the
neighborhood and we can welcome and recognize each other in passing.

To date we have had no objections to our planned shelter. The neighbors have been very encouraging
because they know that this shelter is needed in Rock Hill.

As stated previously our neighbor on the west side has enthusiastically approved of our proposed fence
on the property line.



R —— |

—

e T it ey

3

o
| e T
l\ e | T TS g geoe
i i, . . ~, e
iz 0 ~, G
i e ) ) - S
“\ Proposed six foot high opaque vinyl fence ! e
\ on property line S
- — o : e prre— 200 ¢ i " | - ‘\.I;
W . = =
l 1 L™ | ;@ A
b |
0] . = f o e
Q N : o,
c L [P
L L e
= z.
£
>
) e
=]
3
8
w gt v b
i W

e = AT 10T M
= el FernATy
Ay
a9y W onR
& 12 4" 200 ACIAN 411, Wit KO OMENNEE
- et @ e g
o8 ~ otk v
e

32

23

S
e how o e
o
s e b
Wi

-

LR

@ savut or s

155o:

—
AR E ez v
e
b

Pom s "l, i " st e o vy
S

o ﬁ&ﬁn’ (16, o B i,
Rl

(

BRI SR I S sl

LOCATED AT T568 WEST MAIN STREET
N THE QTr OF ROCK HEL
BOUNDARY

ROCK HILL WOMEN’S SHELTER

Lo

“samer
o ey

Sruon |Bummime
Bewnces, 1o

T
70

ot

bo.6¢
" G 0 n—
I 1y g4t L 'hm?mﬁ " -
g |
it ‘1
by 8 NN 0 s ;l i CURRINY BUBIECT PROSEATS: ' W
on ;
e ron 1 R alfyf | A
S Kl j ! WEST aiﬁ;ﬁmﬁ ‘ 6‘55'1'6"’2'53‘1”3’5?51:;@5»4
) iy B PLAT 400 il
0 4 A Hg ‘ MA/N STREET — 80 PUBL/C‘ R/W (GnY OF RocK i) PO 101 eedSERE
L p— | ‘ a1 ol
T 4 oo
ST M SR R %‘ } o oo T
T ey ‘ B T S B, rmmmeh e e e e e
£ ‘ NG e () i Pt SseLl o0 e otaenits o R iR ¥ s B T
an 4 ,,,,,'} o e S O R e S S
x i R b
= ! A Ul TS,
i e b o
W ! i
GRAPHIC SCALE
[ ; =

i 7

T C
13 7

PLAT BK 166 PG 192




April 23, 2022

City of Rock Hill
Zoning Board of Appeals

To Whom It May Concern:

I am the neighbor to the West of 1568 West Main Street, Rock Hill. Sue Fullerton, representing Truck of
Love, has spoken with me about erecting a six foot vinyl fence on the property line between our homes.
I am in favor of this fence being erected on the property line by them.

Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,

Lapws Mo e

Joy4- a4 -51FH ‘ -
51z i St wo Roct Hill KU



ROCKHILL

SOUTH CAROLINA B
2

,/

Z.-2022-24
/] Subject Property

Zoning Districts
Multi-Family 15 (MF-15)
Neighborhood Office (NO)
Office and Institutional (Ol)

OUTSIDE
CITY

OUTSIDE
CITY

(7]

TAN STELLACT

Single-Family 3 (SF-3)

Single-Family 4 (SF-4)

Single-Family 5 (SF-5)

RMX-10

CAMELLIA-CT-

SOULSVILLE-ST

L N’O

MAIN ST

W

Zoning Data

O

E__ Current Zoning
>

2 NO

s

(o)

©

o

(o]

A ' N‘

@
=
0 200 400

Feet

Planning & Development
Department
City of Rock Hill

05/17/2022




	Z-2021-42 Order.pdf
	Z-2021-42
	THE BOARD, THEREFORE, ORDERS:

	Z-2022-16 Order.pdf
	Z-2022-16
	THE BOARD, THEREFORE, ORDERS:

	Z-2022-19 Order.pdf
	Z-2022-19
	THE BOARD, THEREFORE, ORDERS:

	Z-2022-20 Order.pdf
	Z-2022-20
	THE BOARD, THEREFORE, ORDERS:

	Z-2022-21 App.pdf
	K&KM ZBA_(Variance_Application)_PlanDev_20181120
	IMG_3623

	Z-2022-21 Coversheet.pdf
	Slide Number 1

	Z-2022-22 App.pdf
	CHECK STORAGE 3-85000.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout2



	Z-2022-22 App.pdf
	CHECK STORAGE 3-85000.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout2



	Z-2022-22 Coversheet.pdf
	Slide Number 1

	Z-2022-23 Coversheet.pdf
	Slide Number 1

	Z-2022-24 Coversheet.pdf
	Slide Number 1

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



